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          1  LANDMARKS, PUBLIC SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Welcome to the

          3  Land Use Subcommittee on Landmarks, Public Siting

          4  and Maritime Uses. I'm Jessica Lappin, the Chair.

          5  We're joined today by Council Member Miguel Martinez

          6  of Manhattan, Council Member Maria del Carmen Arroyo

          7  from the Bronx, Council Member John Liu from Queens

          8  and Council Member Leroy Comrie from Queens.

          9                 We're going to begin today with the

         10  school that is on the agenda, PSIS 128 in Queens, in

         11  Council Member Gallagher's district. And if Gregory

         12  Shaw, School Construction Authority could join us?

         13  We've also been joined by Council Member Oddo from

         14  Staten Island.

         15                 Whenever you're ready.

         16                 MR. SHAW: Thank you very much. And

         17  good morning, Chairperson Lappin and Council

         18  Members. On a personal note, myself and of course

         19  the School Construction Authority, would like to

         20  congratulate you on your son Lucas, and expect that

         21  mother and son are doing well.

         22                 The New York City School Construction

         23  Authority has undertaken the site selection process

         24  for the proposed 650-seat primary and intermediate

         25  school facility known as PSIS 128, a new
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          2  construction project that will be located on Tax

          3  Block 3027, Lot 37, bounded by 65th Drive, Juniper

          4  Valley Road, 69th Place and 70th Street in the

          5  Middle Village Section of Queens. The proposed

          6  school site is also located in Community School

          7  District No. 24, and Queens Community Board No. 5.

          8                 The proposed site contains a total of

          9  approximately 75,400 square feet of lot area.

         10                 The site is owned by the City of New

         11  York under the jurisdiction and control of the

         12  Department of Education. Under the proposed plan the

         13  SCA will construct a new four-story 650-seat primary

         14  and intermediate school facility to replace the

         15  existing PS 128, which will be demolished after the

         16  construction of the new school is complete, prior to

         17  September 2009.

         18                 The proposed project would relieve

         19  overcrowding and the existing PS 129 -- excuse me,

         20  128 building, and consolidate its student body in

         21  one facility, and expand the school to serve

         22  additional grade levels. The existing PS 128

         23  building is operating currently at 117 percent

         24  capacity, serving an enrollment of approximately 176

         25  students in grades kindergarten through fifth grade.
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          2                 The notice of filing for the site

          3  plan was published in the New York Post and the City

          4  Record on January 5th, 2007. Queens Community Board

          5  No. 5 was also notified of the site plan on January

          6  5th of that year, and was asked to hold a public

          7  hearing for the proposed site plan.

          8                 Community Board No. 5 held it's

          9  hearing on the site plan on February 7th of 2007,

         10  and subsequently sent written comments in support of

         11  the proposed site plan.

         12                 The City Planning Commission was also

         13  notified of the site plan on January 5th and it also

         14  recommended in favor of the site plan.

         15                 An alternate site analysis was not

         16  conducted for this site, because this new school

         17  building will be located on the existing grounds of

         18  the current PS 128 building.

         19                 The SCA has considered all comments

         20  received on the proposed site plan, and affirms the

         21  site plan pursuant to Section 1731 of the Public

         22  Authorities Law, in accordance with Section 1732 of

         23  the Public Authorities Law, the SCA submitted the

         24  proposed site plan to the Mayor and the Council on

         25  May 10th, 2007. We look forward to your
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          2  Subcommittee's favorable consideration of the

          3  proposed site plan. We are prepared to answer any

          4  questions that the Committee may want to ask about

          5  the plan.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you.

          7                 MR. SHAW: Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I have a couple

          9  of questions.

         10                 One, just to reiterate, the school

         11  and the annex will remain open until the new

         12  facility is ready; is that correct?

         13                 MR. SHAW: That's correct, yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: So there will be

         15  no disruption and students will just move from one

         16  building to the next?

         17                 MR. SHAW: That is correct.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Okay. The

         19  community board, which I notice voted unanimously in

         20  favor of this, and I should note for my colleagues

         21  that Council Member Gallagher is in support of this,

         22  that the school yard is an important recreation area

         23  for the community.

         24                 MR. SHAW: Yes, it is.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: So, could you
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          2  explain to me what's going to happen in terms of

          3  what's there now, versus what will be there in the

          4  future?

          5                 MR. SHAW: Actually, what's going to

          6  happen is there will be a significant improvement.

          7  The playground, once the new school is completed, we

          8  will demolish the existing PS 128, which is

          9  approximately a one-story building, and we will put

         10  in place a state-of-the-art playground facility. So,

         11  the playground that's there now, which is old and

         12  doesn't have some of the amenities of the new

         13  playgrounds, will be replaced in the area where the

         14  existing building was. And, so, they will have

         15  basketball courts and a completely new playground

         16  facility, which will be open to the community.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Great.

         18                 In terms of Local Law 86, this is

         19  going to be a green building, I assume, or not?

         20                 MR. SHAW: That I'm not sure. I'm

         21  going to let the Manager of Operations for Site

         22  Acquisition, Kenrick Ou, who sponsors that.

         23                 MR. OU: My understanding is it is

         24  not. That this building started design before those

         25  regulations came into effect. So, it is being
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          2  designed to the previous standards.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: So, this is not

          4  going to be a green building?

          5                 MR. OU: It will not be meeting the

          6  new standards that were promulgated in the Green

          7  Schools Guide, that was I think just adopted by the

          8  City a couple of months ago. The design had been

          9  initiated last year, so a lot of the analyses and

         10  the design work that had been completed. I can't say

         11  the extent to which we know that these standards

         12  were going to be coming on line, so there may have

         13  been an effort to design and consideration of them.

         14  But just in terms of chronology, those standards had

         15  not been adopted as we had initiated the design and

         16  had progressed several months into it before those

         17  standards were accepted.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Okay.

         19                 I hope that future plans that you

         20  present to us for schools, future site selections,

         21  do include green buildings.

         22                 Do any of my colleagues have

         23  questions? Great. Thank you very much.

         24                 Council Member Comrie.

         25                 MR. OU: Thank you.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: What's the

          3  catchment area?

          4                 MR. OU: The existing PS 128

          5  Organization serves up to grade five. It is a

          6  locally zoned school, as almost all elementary

          7  schools are.

          8                 The new PSIS building, which will

          9  allow the organization to accommodate grade six,

         10  seven and eight in keeping with the Department of

         11  Education's model, current instructional model, will

         12  also be a zoned catchment area. I don't believe that

         13  the final boundaries of the zone have been

         14  determined, and probably would not be until perhaps

         15  a year before the school opens.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Any special ed

         17  determinations being set up for this?

         18                 MR. OU: Yes. In keeping with the

         19  capital plan and Citywide requirements, we are

         20  reserving approximately ten percent of the seats for

         21  District 75 special ed.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: All right. And

         23  still no issues on the site regarding environmental

         24  concerns, correct?

         25                 There are no environmental issues
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          2  with this site?

          3                 MR. SHAW: There's no on-site

          4  conditions. There is a gas station that is some

          5  distance away, and we do have our environmental

          6  consultant here who can respond to any questions you

          7  might have, if you'd like.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: You brought an

          9  environmental consultant?

         10                 MR. SHAW: Yes, I did.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I see. All

         12  right, well, that means there must not be any

         13  problem, then if you're that confident. So, we'll

         14  see. All right.

         15                 Where is the front door of the school

         16  going to be? The main entrance to this? Is it going

         17  to be on -- which street?

         18                 MR. OU: I want to make sure that I

         19  have my streets correct, so if you could bear with

         20  me for a moment.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Yes.

         22                 MR. OU: The main entrance will be on

         23  65th Drive, which is the northern boundary of the

         24  site.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And that will
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          2  be the entrance for all of the schools once it's set

          3  up? Or just the ISPS?

          4                 MR. OU: My understanding is that will

          5  be a single entrance. Off on 69th Place, which is

          6  the western boundary, is where a bus drop off is

          7  anticipated, so the buses would not necessarily line

          8  up on 65th Drive, which is right next to the homes,

          9  but instead on the wider 69th Place. And students

         10  would gather and enter from the western areas

         11  through that entrance on 65th Drive.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. That

         13  makes sense. All right. Thank you, Madam Chair.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: And how many

         15  seats are you adding to the new facility?

         16                 MR. OU: The existing PS 128 building

         17  is a one-story building. I think its capacity is

         18  approximately 170 seats. The annex I think has an

         19  enrollment approximately comparable, 170. The new

         20  facility will have a total capacity of 650 seats.

         21  So, we're adding, in terms of the PSIS organization,

         22  capacity for approximately 300 additional students.

         23  But just keep in mind, this is 300 additional

         24  students adding those three grades of the IS level

         25  sixth, seventh and eighth, which are not currently
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          2  served by PS 128.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: So, are you

          4  actually adding seats at all or this is just the net

          5  sum.

          6                 MR. OU: No, we are adding seats. The

          7  approximately 170 existing seats within the building

          8  that will be demolished and replaced with school

          9  yard, of the 650, those 170 would be considered, and

         10  funded from the capital plan, I understand, as

         11  replacement seats.

         12                 The new capacity, which are seats

         13  that don't really exist right now, is the balance,

         14  from 650 less 170, so we're talking approximately

         15  about 480 seats.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Well, that's 340,

         17  right? Because you have the annex and the building?

         18                 MR. OU: Well, the annex, and this is

         19  a question that had come up when we went before the

         20  community board. That is a leased annex. At this

         21  point it is not clear whether the Department of

         22  Education will surrender the lease or try to

         23  renegotiate it or keep it, or some other program.

         24  But the goal with respect to this new building is to

         25  create a facility where PS 128 will not be split
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          2  between the two buildings. So, in the absence of

          3  definitively being able to say at this point that

          4  the annex will be off the table, we're looking at --

          5  we're assuming that that annex will still be

          6  available in the future, should the Department

          7  determine that there is a need for it.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Okay. Thank you

          9  very much.

         10                 Okay, this hearing is closed.

         11                 MR. OU: Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: And why don't we

         13  vote on this item before we move to the landmarks.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK: Chair Lappin.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Aye.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Comrie.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Aye.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Liu.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Aye.

         20                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member

         21  Martinez.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Madam Chair,

         23  can I ask unanimous consent to vote on all items

         24  before the agenda? I have another Committee hearing.

         25  Aye.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Arroyo.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Aye.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Oddo.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Aye.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK: The vote stands five

          7  in the affirmative, none in the negative, no

          8  abstention. The item passes to the full Land Use

          9  Committee.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Okay, let's open

         11  the hearing now on the item in Council Member

         12  Vallone's district, the Sohmer Piano Factory,

         13  located at 3101 Vernon Boulevard in Queens, and ask

         14  Diane Jackier to come and testify.

         15                 MS. JACKIER: Good morning, Council

         16  members. Welcome back, Chair Lappin. My name is

         17  Diane Jackier, Director of External Affairs for the

         18  Landmarks Preservation Commission. I'm here today to

         19  testify on the Commission's designation of the

         20  Sohmer Piano Factory in Queens.

         21                 On March 15th, 2005, the Landmarks

         22  Commission held a public hearing on the proposed

         23  designation of the Sohmer Piano Factory. Eight

         24  people testified in favor, including representatives

         25  at the Metropolitan Waterfront Alliance, the
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          2  Municipal Arts Society and the Historic Districts

          3  Council. Representatives of the building's owners at

          4  that time spoke in opposition. The Commissioner also

          5  received correspondence in support of designation,

          6  including a letter from the society for industrial

          7  archeology.

          8                 Queens Borough President, Helen

          9  Marshall, City Council Member Peter Vallone, Jr.,

         10  and State Senator George Onorato sent letters

         11  opposing designation.

         12                 Subsequent to the 2005 public

         13  hearing, new owners acquired the building and a

         14  representative submitted a letter in support of

         15  designation, and the Commission also received

         16  another letter from Council Member Vallone also

         17  supporting designation.

         18                 The Commission previously held public

         19  hearings on the building on November 15th, 1983,

         20  June 12th, 1984, July 10th, 1990, and September

         21  11th, 1990. On February 27th, 2007, the Landmarks

         22  Commission voted to designate the Sohmer Piano

         23  factory as a New York City landmark.

         24                 One of the most prominent structures

         25  along the Queens side of the East River on Long
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          2  Island City, the Sohmer Piano Factory building is

          3  distinguished by its monumental scale and prominent

          4  mansard-roofed clock tower.

          5                 Constructed in 1886, the building was

          6  designed by the architectural firm Berger & Baylies,

          7  which produced plans for commercial and residential

          8  buildings throughout New York City, including

          9  several warehouses and store-and-loft buildings in

         10  the Tribeca Historic Districts. The Sohmer factory,

         11  designed in the German Romanesque Revival Style, is

         12  constructed with brick with segmentally-arched

         13  windows with brick lintels. An addition built in

         14  1906 to '07 and attributed to architect Franklin

         15  Baylies, was designed to match the earlier section.

         16                 Sohmer & Company was founded in 1872

         17  in Manhattan by the German immigrant Hugo Sohmer.

         18  The firm specialized in the making of verticals or

         19  upright pianos that were more popular for domestic

         20  usage, and the company's product was one of the

         21  finest pianos made in the United States. Sohmer was

         22  part of the booming nineteenth-century New York City

         23  piano industry. In 1872, there were 171 piano

         24  manufacturers in New York City. Now most pianos are

         25  produced abroad.
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          2                 While Sohmer never achieved the

          3  celebrity of its more famous counterpart, Steinway,

          4  the company did have notable fans. Composer Victor

          5  Herbert owned several Sohmer pianos and the noted

          6  American songwriter, Irving Berlin, had three

          7  Sohmers with transposing with transposing keyboards

          8  that he used to write his music. The company

          9  remained at the plant until 1982, when it was

         10  acquired by the Pratt, Read & Company, America's

         11  leading manufacturer of piano keyboards and actions,

         12  which moved the factory to Irvington, Connecticut.

         13  Sohmer pianos are now made in Korea.

         14                 After Sohmer departed, the factory in

         15  Queens was acquired by the Adirondack Chair Company.

         16  The building was sold in 2005 and is now being

         17  converted to residential apartments. The Sohmer

         18  Building, which is one of the few extant survivors

         19  of the once-thriving-piano-manufacturing in New York

         20  City, is a significant reminder of the industrial

         21  past of the East River waterfront, and is one of the

         22  rare surviving nineteenth century factory buildings

         23  found in Queens.

         24                 The Commission urges you to affirm

         25  the designation.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you. And I

          3  just wanted to clarify for my colleagues, that the

          4  building, as Diane mentioned, was sold, and the new

          5  owner is supportive of designation, so the local

          6  elected officials are now supportive, even know they

          7  had previously been in opposition to the

          8  designation.

          9                 Do any of my colleagues have

         10  questions? Okay, thank you.

         11                 We can turn to, there are three items

         12  in the Speaker's district. We can start with 354

         13  West 11th Street.

         14                 Are you going to speak on each

         15  individual property, or on all three together?

         16                 MS. JACKIER: I have testimony on all

         17  three individually.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: If you'd like,

         19  you can submit that for the record, and just speak

         20  briefly about the three.

         21                 MS. JACKIER: Sure.

         22                 I'll just give you the testimony for

         23  all three, which was almost the same.

         24                 On November 14th, 2006, the Landmarks

         25  Preservation Commission held a public hearing on the
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          2  proposed designation of 354 West 11th Street, 159

          3  Charles Street and the Keller Hotel. Between 13 and

          4  15 people spoke in favor, depending on the owner,

          5  including representatives of City Council Speaker

          6  Christine Quinn, State Senator Thomas Duane,

          7  Assembly Member Deborah Glick, Manhattan Borough

          8  President Scott Stringer, Manhattan Community Board

          9  2, the Greenwich Village Society for Historic

         10  Preservation, the Greenwich Village Community Task

         11  Force, the Municipal Arts Society, the Metropolitan

         12  Chapter of the Victorian Society in America, the

         13  Historic Districts Council, the New York Landmarks

         14  Conservancy, and the Morton Street Block

         15  Association.

         16                 One of the owners for 354 West 11th

         17  Street spoke in opposition. The owner for 159

         18  Charles Street spoke in favor of designation, and

         19  the owner of the Keller Hotel spoke in favor of

         20  designation, as well.

         21                 On March 6th, 2007, the Commission

         22  voted to designate all three of these buildings

         23  individual New York City Landmarks.

         24                 I can just briefly give you the

         25  information that I'll read you. 354 West 11th
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          2  Street, is one of the best extant examples of the

          3  Greek Revival Style row houses of the 1830s and '40s

          4  in the Hudson River waterfront section of Manhattan.

          5                 The Greek Revival Style

          6  characteristics of the house are its three-story

          7  height, machine pressed brick work laid in stretcher

          8  bond, stoop and areaway with wrought-iron work,

          9  entrance with pilasters, entablature, and sidelights

         10  and transom, molded brownstone lintels and flat

         11  roofline.

         12                 The building has remained in

         13  residential use since it was built in 1841 to '42,

         14  and there were several different owners, one of them

         15  was Frederick Hermann Knubel, who went on to study

         16  for the ministry and became the first president of

         17  the United Lutheran Church in America.

         18                 And for 159 Charles Street, the house

         19  was constructed around 1838 for merchant Henry

         20  Wyckoff, and it is a rare surviving residential

         21  building of the early period of development, also of

         22  the far western section of Greenwich Village, and

         23  shows through its occupants and associations some of

         24  the far West Village's most significant businesses,

         25  the maritime trade and brewing industry. It is also
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          2  a Greek Revival Style row house.

          3                 Henry Wyckoff was a prominent tea and

          4  wine merchant, and he built nine buildings on the

          5  former grounds of the New Gate Prison, which this is

          6  the only survivor, and it's incredibly intact, has

          7  most of its detail, including its original

          8  decorative wrought iron areaway fence, ornamented

          9  with anthemia, and it is an incredibly intact Greek

         10  Revival Style house.

         11                 The Keller Hotel, the renaissance

         12  revival Keller Hotel was constructed in 1897 to '98

         13  to the design of Julius Munckwitz, the Supervising

         14  Architect and Superintendent of Parks in New York

         15  City. Mr. Munckwitz also maintained a private

         16  architectural practice in Harlem. The building is an

         17  example of an elegant, restrained use of

         18  Renaissance-inspired ornament with string courses

         19  between each floor, an entrance portico with

         20  Corinthian columns and a simple cornice.

         21                 The Commission urges you to support

         22  the designations of all three buildings.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you. And

         24  there are some other people also signed up to

         25  testify in support, but before Diane, does anybody
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          2  have any questions for Diane about these three

          3  properties? Okay, thank you very much.

          4                 I wanted to ask, is Kat Taylor here

          5  from the Manhattan Borough President's Office.

          6                 MS. TAYLOR: Good morning, Chair

          7  Lappin, Committee members. I am here to testify

          8  today on behalf of Manhattan Borough President

          9  Stringer. And I thank you for the opportunity to

         10  testify about the designation of 159 Charles Street,

         11  the Edwin Brooks House and the Keller Hotel as New

         12  York City landmarks.

         13                 These designations are an important

         14  step toward fulfilling a promise made to the Far

         15  West Village Community by the Landmarks Preservation

         16  Commission in June of 2005 to expand the Greenwich

         17  Village Historic District, create the Weehawken

         18  Historic District, and designate eight individual

         19  properties as New York City landmarks, three of

         20  which are being heard today.

         21                 These three buildings tell important

         22  tales of the development of the Far West Village.

         23  159 Charles Street and the Edwin Brooks House are

         24  good surviving examples of the architecture of the

         25  village in the early half of the 19th Century.
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          2                 The Keller Hotel tells a significant

          3  story of the maritime history of the West Village

          4  and this structure has fallen on hard times in

          5  recent years. In order to ensure that the building

          6  does not suffer further disrepair, designation of

          7  the landmark is critical. With development

          8  proceeding in the Far West Village at a rapid pace,

          9  it is imperative that we save these important

         10  structures to tell the story of the village to

         11  further generations. Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you very

         13  much.

         14                 Andrew Berman, from the Greenwich

         15  Village Society for Historic Preservation, Doris

         16  Diether from Community Board 2 and Roger Lang from

         17  the New York Landmarks Conservancy.

         18                 And we've been joined by Council

         19  Member Rosie Mendez.

         20                 MR. BERMAN: Good morning, Council

         21  members. My name is Andrew Berman. I'm the Executive

         22  Director of the Greenwich Village Society for

         23  Historic Preservation, I'm basically here this

         24  morning to urge you to support the designation of

         25  all three of these individual landmarks. As was
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          2  mentioned by the prior Speaker, this was the

          3  culmination of the years and years of work by the

          4  West Village Community, and a commitment which was

          5  made by the Landmarks Preservation Commission for

          6  the extension of the Greenwich Village Historic

          7  District, the creation of a Weehawken Street

          8  Historic District, and the designation of eight

          9  individual landmarks, of which these are the first

         10  three. These are all wonderful examples of the

         11  history of the Greenwich Village waterfront, one of

         12  the oldest sections of New York.

         13                 And, finally, even though I don't

         14  think they were here this morning, I know only one

         15  of the owners opposed designation, that was 354 West

         16  11th Street, claiming it would be a hardship. I do

         17  just want to share with the Committee that we

         18  checked City records and saw that they actually sold

         19  all of their development rights for a handsome price

         20  about a year or so ago, which I think calls into

         21  question their claim of hardship. So, they could not

         22  develop the site regardless, and I have those

         23  documents if the Committee should be interested in

         24  them.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 MR. DIETHER: Doris Diether, Community

          3  Board 2. We passed resolutions on these three

          4  properties in November of 2006 and I'd like to read

          5  our resolutions, which are not too long.

          6                 Whereas: 354 West 11th Street was

          7  built in 1842, 1844 for Edwin SL Brooks, a lawyer,

          8  as an example of the Greek Revival Style, common in

          9  much of Greenwich Village; and

         10                 Whereas: The Landmarks Commission

         11  report specifically cites brick and brownstone trim,

         12  the dentiture corners, brownstone lentils and sills

         13  and the graduated windows decreasing in size from

         14  first to the third floors; and

         15                 Whereas: The Commission also cites

         16  the Greek Revival entrance with a brownstone door

         17  enframement for the tuscan posters supporting

         18  dentitured corners and panel door with sidelights

         19  and transom; and

         20                 Whereas: The building is "remarkably

         21  intact" according to the Landmarks Commission, and a

         22  good example of the Greek Revival Style;

         23                 Therefore, Be It Resolved: Community

         24  Board No. 2, Manhattan, recommends Landmarks

         25  designation of 354 West 11th Street; and
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          2                 Be It Further Resolved, Community

          3  Board 2 continues to urge the Commission to landmark

          4  the other already identified sites in the West

          5  Village.

          6                 And 150 Barrow Street.

          7                 Whereas: The Keller Hotel, built in

          8  1898 by architect Julius Munckwitz, is one of the

          9  three remaining waterfront special program hotels

         10  along the Greenwich Village Waterfront, an important

         11  part of the area's history; and

         12                 Whereas: This Greek Revival Style

         13  building is not in great condition, and the

         14  designation would protect and hopefully lead to the

         15  restoration of the building; therefore

         16                 Be It Resolved: Community Board No. 2

         17  recommends landmark designation of 150 Barrow

         18  Street.

         19                 And 159 Charles Street.

         20                 Whereas: The Greek Revival house at

         21  159 Charles Street was built around 1838 for Henry

         22  Wyckoff, as part of a group of ten buildings on the

         23  site of the former New Gates State Prison, and is

         24  the only one of the ten still standing; and

         25                 Whereas: The three-story plus
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          2  basement, three bay wide brick house retains

          3  brownstone detailing and brownstone surround entry

          4  with pilasters and entablements with wood pilasters

          5  framing the panel doorway, sidelights, transom and

          6  top lights; and

          7                 Whereas: The building retains its 6

          8  over 6 windows and wood saches on the second and

          9  third floors, and the brownstone base and original

         10  decorative wroughtiron fence and anthenians;

         11  therefore

         12                 Be It Resolved: Community Board No. 2

         13  recommends a landmark designation of 159 Charles

         14  Street.

         15                 And I don't know whether you people

         16  get the City Land Report, which comes out on a

         17  regular basis, but they quite an extensive report in

         18  there, and the April 15th, 2007 issue on these three

         19  buildings and they specifically mentioned the fact

         20  that it was a New Gates Prison site for a couple of

         21  the buildings, so I wanted to bring that to your

         22  attention.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you very

         24  much.

         25                 Mr. Lang.
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          2                 MR. LANG: Good morning, Chairwoman

          3  Lappin and members of the Subcommittee. I'm Roger

          4  Lang, speaking on behalf of the New York Landmarks

          5  Conservancy. The Conservancy supports all four

          6  designations that you are considering today and

          7  urges you to ratify them.

          8                 With respect to the three in the

          9  village, you heard the case succinctly put by Mr.

         10  Berman. I won't repeat it, other than to say that it

         11  is very important that the Commission be supported

         12  in its efforts to follow through on pledges, such as

         13  the one they made when we created the district

         14  extension in the Weehawken district. Making historic

         15  districts is all about setting boundaries. Many of

         16  us will differ to some degree on what the boundaries

         17  should be. But there is some place at which the

         18  sense of place stops, and when good buildings are

         19  just on the fringe or outside of that. We need to

         20  bring protection to them without necessarily

         21  diluting the district as a whole.

         22                 There's an important premise here,

         23  that the Commission is acting in good faith and with

         24  considerable speed to make good on these pledges.

         25                 With respect to the Sohmer Piano
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          2  Factory, I would urge you to sustain this

          3  designation, because it is a reminder of an

          4  industrial heritage that is rapidly being erased

          5  along the shores of the East River and elsewhere in

          6  New York City.

          7                 There was a time when pianos were

          8  virtually as ubiquitous then as Ipods are today,

          9  and, in fact, the only way a house would have music

         10  was if it made its own, and therefore the ownership

         11  of the piano fostered this enormous industry. And

         12  our kids will never get that unless we have good

         13  examples of piano manufacturers around to try to

         14  tell them that story.

         15                 So, we urge you to sustain all these

         16  designations and thank you for the opportunity to

         17  present our views.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you very

         19  much, all three of you. And I just wanted to remind

         20  my colleagues, Mr. Berman made mention of, or three

         21  of the people testified, that when we approved in

         22  July of 2006 the extensions of these two historic

         23  districts and the Speaker's district, there was

         24  discussion of these three and five other individual

         25  landmarks. So, this is the first step the Landmarks
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          2  Commission has designated three of the eight that

          3  were discussed when we approved those districts just

          4  under a year ago.

          5                 Thank you. I'm going to close the

          6  hearing on 354 West 11th, and open the hearing on

          7  159 Charles Street, and just note for the record

          8  that Ms. Diether, Mr. Lang, Mr. Berman and the

          9  Borough President all are in support of that and

         10  spoke earlier in support of those designations and

         11  we have written testimony from the Landmarks

         12  Commission. I will close that hearing, open the

         13  hearing on 150 Barrow Street and note again that Ms.

         14  Diether, Mr. Lang, Mr. Berman, the Manhattan Borough

         15  President were all in support and indicated that and

         16  that the Landmarks Commission submitted written

         17  testimony on that item, and close that hearing and

         18  ask the Counsel to call the roll.

         19                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Chair Lappin.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Aye on all.

         21                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         22  Barron.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Yes.

         24                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Also on the

         25  previous vote. Yes.
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          2                 Council Member Comrie.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Aye on all.

          4                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

          5  Liu.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Yes.

          7                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: On all items?

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Yes on all items.

          9  Oh, it's a coupled vote.

         10                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         11  Martinez.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Madam Chair,

         13  is this the last item on the agenda? So, I vote aye

         14  on all.

         15                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         16  Arroyo.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Aye.

         18                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         19  Mendez.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Aye.

         21                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         22  Oddo.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Aye.

         24                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: By a vote of

         25  eight in the affirmative, none in the negative, no
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          2  abstentions, all items pass to the full Land Use

          3  Committee.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Okay. We're not

          5  going to hold the vote open. This meeting is

          6  adjourned.

          7                 (Hearing concluded at 11:46 a.m.)

          8

          9

         10

         11

         12

         13

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

         25

                                                            33

          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter, do hereby certify that the

         11  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         12  within proceeding.

         13                 I further certify that I am not

         14  related to any of the parties to this action by

         15  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         16  interested in the outcome of this matter.
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         18  set my hand this 15th day of May 2007.
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